047
FILED

SID J. WHITE

MAY 20 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By *W*
Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

(Before a Referee)

THE FLORIDA BAR

Complainant,

Supreme Court Case #: 77,773

Florida Bar File #: 89-52,722 (17C)

vs

RAY SANDSTROM,

ORIGINAL

Respondent.

-----/

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT/RESPONDENT

[On Respondent's Petition to Review Proceedings had and taken in Dade County, Florida, before the Honorable Joel H. Brown, as Referee, upon a Bar Complaint against Respondent]

KAYO E. MORGAN

Attorney at Law

432 N.E. 3rd Ave

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301

TABL R OF CONTENTS

TABEL OF CASES	p 1-2
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT	p 2-3
STATE OF CASE AND FACTS	p 3-4

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Florida Bar is the Complainant below, and shall be so referred to herein, or as 'The Bar'.

Ray Sandstrom is the Respondent below, and shall be referred to as such or as Appellant, Respondent, or Appellant/Respondent herein,

The 'Report of Referee' is the subject of this appeal, and references thereto shall be as (Report, p 1).

The hearing which was conducted before the Referee has been transcribed and shall be referred to as (R. p 1).

Exhibit '1' is the Rule 3.850 order granting a new trial to Appellant/Respondent's client, Robert Arner, and shall be referred to as (E1, p 1). This was received by the Referee at the hearing below (R. 11-12).

Exhibit '2' is the transcript of the subject trial wherein Appellant/Respondent represented Robert Arner and shall be

referred to as (E2, I p 1). Note the 'volume' is referred to in roman numeral after the 'E' and before the 'p'. This was received by the Referee at the hearing below (R. 12-13).

Exhibit '3' is the transcript of the Rule 3.850 hearing received below by the Referee (R. 13-14).

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

Appellant/Respondent represented Robert Arner, the defendant in a first degree murder indictment, the trial of which commenced 15 September 1980 and concluded 25 October 1980 (E2, III-XXIII), with a verdict of guilty as charged (E2, XXIII p 4351).

The defendant appealed to the Fourth District Court of Appeals, which court affirmed the conviction 21 November 1984. ARNER v STATE, 459 So2d 1136).

The defendant pursued collateral relief alleging ineffective assistance of trial counsel, and a hearing thereon was conducted about 20 November 1987 (E3, p 1). The trial court granted that relief, and a new trial was ordered for the defendant. (E1).

Appellant/Respondent was served a 'Complaint' by the Bar dated 18 April 1991.

Appellant/Respondent served an 'Answer to Complaint' dated 5 June 1991.

On 7 October 1991 the Referee conducted a hearing on the Bar's complaint. (E3)

On 8 November 1991 the Referee served his Report of Referee, the subject of this appeal. (Report).

On 24 January 1992 the board of governors meeting ended affirming the Report of Referee.

On 3 February 1992 Appellant/Respondent served his Petition for Review of Referee's Report in this Court.

Further record facts shall be set forth as required in the course of arguments.

POINTS ON APPEAL

POINT ONE ON APPEAL

THE REFEREE ERRED FINDING THAT APPELLANT/RESPONDENT FAILED TO CONDUCT A PROPER INVESTIGATION RELATING TO EVIDENCE AVAILABLE TO ESTABLISH THAT THE ALLEGED VICTIM'S DEATH WAS DUE TO A CAUSE OTHER THAN THE CLIENT ARNER'S ACTIONS ALLEGED IN THE MURDER INDICTMENT

POINT TWO ON APPEAL

THE REFEREE ERRED FINDING IMPROPER CONDUCT BY APPELLANT/RESPONDENT RESPECTING THE MOTION TO SUPPRESS EVIDENCE MADE DURING THE TRIAL

POINT THREE ON APPEAL

THE REFEREE ERRED RELYING UPON THAT THE EXISTENCE VEL NON OF A FENCE INJURED APPELLANT/RESPONDENT'S CLIENT'S CASE AND THAT APPELLANT/RESPONDENT FAILED TO DISCOVER THAT A DEPICTED FENCE WAS ERECTED SUBSEQUENT TO THE ALLEGED CRIME

POINT FOUR ON APPEAL

THE REFEREE ERRED FINDING THAT APPELLANT/RESPONDENT FAILED TO PRESENT A CRITICAL TAPE RECORDING TO IMPEACH A WITNESS AND IN RELYING THEREON TO INFER MISCONDUCT BY APPELLANT/RESPONDENT

POINT FIVE ON APPEAL

THE REFEREE ERRED FINDING THE APPELLANT/RESPONDENT FAILED TO BECOME FAMILIAR WITH OR KNOW THE PHYSICAL EVIDENCE

IN THE CASE AND INFERRING MISCONDUCT BY
APPELLANT/RESPONDENT THEREON

POINT SIX ON APPEAL

THE COPY COSTS TAXED BY THE REFEREE ARE
EXCESSIVE AND OUGHT TO BE LIMITED TO
\$.10/COPY AND ONLY THE PORTIONS OF THE
PROCEEDINGS RELIED UPON OUGHT BE SUBJECT
TO TAXATION AGAINST APPELLANT/RESPONDENT, IF
ANYTHING

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

POINT ONE: The trial evidence and the evidence at the Rule 3.850 hearing establish that Appellant/Respondent's client was not prejudiced by any failure of counsel to pursue an intervening, superceding cause of death of the client's victim-wife. The evidence establishes rather that the head injury allegedly inflicted by the client on the wife caused, or substantially contributed to the cause of the alleged death. Such a defense was not available in fact or law; and moreover Appellant/Respondent made a reasonably sufficient inquiry pre-trial into the possibility of such defense and did reasonably rely upon a respected expert's opinion that the medical examiner's conclusions in the autopsy report that the cause of death was the said head injury and that no superceding, independent cause was apparent.

POINT TWO: Appellant/Respondent moved to suppress anything observed in the trunk of the victim's vehicle, wherein the victim was discovered mortally injured by police. It does not appear

that the client had standing to assert an expectation of **privacy**, and it does not appear that the police needed a warrant in any event to search the trunk of that vehicle in the prevailing circumstances, or to inventory same. Moreover, the trunk of the vehicle, and its contents were not harmful to the client's defense. The client maintained he did not do it. Further, to the extent that the suppression issue had merit Appellant/Respondent ably and fairly argued same; including moving to strike photos in evidence, but not published to the jury, alleged to be depictive of the subject of the motion to suppress

POINT THREE: No fence erected after the fact was any part of the trial. The fence issue in any event was not relevant to any issue in the case, nor harmful to the defense posited. In any event, Appellant/Respondent established that the area was not fenced in at the time of the victim's discovery such that access to the vehicle at the location it was found was not obstructed from the golf course intervening that location and the residence of another suspect in the murder, Valerie Wade.

POINT FOUR: The tape recording wherein Wade swore to exculpate the client was not critical, but merely cumulative at best. In any event, Wade testified to the substance of that for which the tape was being offered. Wade moreover was so severely impeached otherwise that the tape was surplusage.

POINT FIVE: It does **not** appear that Appellant/Respondent was derelict in any way respecting becoming familiar with and presenting evidence in the trial of the client's case. The trial

transcript reflects rather that Appellant/Respondent was well cognizant of pertinent matters and aggressively and diligently represented his client's interests at the trial.

POINT SIX: The copy costs are excessive and ought be limited in respect to cost per page and to the portions of the transcripts actually relied upon for the Referee's findings sustained against Appellant/Respondent. Certainly the record which supports Appellant/Respondent against the allegations of misconduct ought not be taxed against him, and likewise as to that which supports the Referee's findings in his favor and against the Bar's complaint's allegations.

POINT ONE ON APPEAL

THE REFEREE ERRED FINDING THAT APPELLANT/RESPONDENT FAILED TO CONDUCT A PROPER INVESTIGATION RELATING TO EVIDENCE AVAILABLE TO ESTABLISH THAT THE ALLEGED VICTIM'S DEATH WAS DUE TO A CAUSE OTHER THAN THE CLIENT ARNER'S ACTIONS ALLEGED IN THE MURDER INDICTMENT

The Referee at paragraph 'F' in its report finds that Appellant did not properly investigate the 'superseding cause of death' issue apparent in the case. (Report, p 2-5). The Referee concludes that the medical experts at the Rule 3.850 hearing (viz Drs Levy and Marracini) "established beyond doubt that the proximate cause of decedent's death was medical malpractice [and tlhat the jury was not presented with such evidence due to lack of adequate preparation on respondent's part". (Report, p 2). A review of those witnesses' testimonies at that hearing will be

helpful to display the exaggerations in the **Referee's Report's** description thereof to support said conclusion and finding.

At the 3.850 hearing the Defendant, Arner, introduced two doctors, Mitchell Levy and John Marracini. (E3, p 14-36; 37-60). Page references as to these witnesses shall be of Exhibit '3'.

Marracini **was** the medical examiner in Palm Beach County (p 14-17). Based on 'records' he read, surgery was performed on the victim 5 March 1978 purposed to treat anticipated pulmonary emboli (p 18) and to ligate a duodenum ulcer (p 20-21). The autopsy report reflected no evidence of emboli "occurring on or about the time of the operation or subsequent to it" (p 20), thus a mis-diagnosis (d). He inferred that "sometime during surgery **it** appears that injury was caused to have happened to the spleen", which injury was "an operative complication" (p 21). Thus surgical intervention caused the spleen to lacerate (id). He allows only that a "negligent event" occurred or that the surgeons were "guilty of some negligence" for not re-exploring **the** patient after the surgery (p 23-24). So far as the internal bleeding bore upon causation of death, "it was one of two mechanisms occurring on or about that time; the other being pneumonia" (p 25). He suggests that the victim would 'probably' have lived but for the operation (id).

On cross Marracini admitted he did not have any 'hands on' examination of the victim as did Fatteh at autopsy to support his diagnoses (p 26-27, 35-36); he had not talked to Fatteh (p 27); he reviewed no photographs of the spleen seen at the autopsy (p 27); and he never spoke to Galante nor any other doctor actually

involved with the victim's treatment (p 30-31). While he admitted that the 'sepsis' issue as to the rupturing process of the spleen would require microscopic examination (p 28), he yet opined that it was 'infarction' rather than sepsis which affected the spleen, that is, that the spleen lost its integrity, fell apart, broke open and leaked (p 28-29). But he remained "not sure" if the deterioration process was not sepsis but infarction (p 28). He acknowledged that the gastro-intestinal bleeding and blood clot concerns which predicated the surgery at issue were foreseeable complications from head trauma (p 33-35). Marracini disagrees with Fatteh's "conclusion regarding the mechanisms of death" (p 36). It is his opinion that the failure to recognize the problem of internal bleeding was tantamount to malpractice (id). Maracini is familiar with and respects Dr. Davis, the Dade County Medical Examiner (p 32)

Levy is a general surgeon (p 37-38). He reviewed the medical record from 25 January to 11 March (p 39). As to the surgery of 5 March:

The preoperative diagnosis was duodenal ulcer, multiple pulmonary emboli and the procedure that they wanted to perform was a vena caval ligation and repair of duodenal ulcer

(p 40). Based on the autopsy report of 12 March, he believes that the surgeons mis-diagnosed the presence of pulmonary emboli (clots) (p 40). Respecting the ulcer treatment procedure:

When you are doing this procedure the spleen is an organ which is very fragile and [] very frequently the capsule of the spleen can be lacerated and I believe that's what happened in this case.

(p 42-43). He opined that it is "probably correct" that during the surgery the doctors lacerated the spleen (p 43). Levy saw nothing in the records that a spontaneous eruption of the spleen occurred due to sepsis (p 43). He believed the proximate cause of death was the surgical intervention and loss of blood (p 47), and that it was 'gross negligence' not to have reopened the victim (p 45-47)

On cross, Levy admitted he reviewed no autopsy slides, no microscopic findings, was not at the autopsy, and talked to no one actually involved (p 48-49, 53). It was his opinion that regardless as to 'how' the spleen ruptured, or what caused it to do so, the victim had to be re-explored (p 50). He does allow that bronchial pneumonia, hemiparesis, pulmonary emboli, urinary tract infection, and duodenal ulcer disease probably developed from the head injury (p 55-56). He maintains too that it is difficult to say whether or not the victim was affected with generalized septicemia (p 57).

Helpful too are the testimonies of Dr. Fatteh at the 3.850 hearing and at the trial, as well as the trial testimony of Doctor Donald Galante.

At the trial (E 2, VI pp 970-1006) [Page references for this witness are of E3, VI]. Dr. Donald Galante testified as the board certified neurosurgeon who treated the victim, commencing 25 January until her death 11 March 1978 (p 970-73, 980-981). When Galante came to the victim she was unconscious with a head injury, obviously quite acutely ill (p 974, 976). Blood and brain matter were extruding from the skull injury (p 976), the

brain having been lacerated by the crushed bone of the **skull** (p 978). Galante cleaned it and removed some brain tissue, and patched it (p 978-79). The victim was placed in intensive care and followed up (p 979-980), still unconscious (id). The victim had a "very complicated course" because of the head injury, including fever (p 980). After she became relatively stable, with some fever, she was transferred to a regular surgical floor (p 980-81). Other problems developed, including generalized infection in the lungs, blood clots in the lungs, kidney problems because of low blood pressure, and "overwhelming fluids in the intracephalous from the lungs", then she died (p 981). These complications were caused by and the result of the skull injury (p 983)

On **cross** examination it was adduced that other abnormalities arose, including gastro-intestinal bleeding (p 986), a lot of lung trouble as well as blood-clots therein (p 987-88), and infection and fever (p 986). The victim was in intensive care for 10-12 days, and started to wake up only after **she** was out of that unit (p 985, 988). She began talking after 2-3 weeks (p 988). Galante recalled that an operation **was** performed on 5 March 1978 (p 992). This operation was performed in order to control existing stomach bleeding and to ligate the main vein from **lower** extremities which **would** carry clots (if any) from the **legs** to the already congested lungs (p 989-990). The victim **was** quite **ill** with her lung problems and infection (p 992-93)

On redirect Galante testified that the ulcer and ligation operation was the result of the complications from the head

injury and the long hospitalization **therefor** (p 995-996). On recross the witness said the clots in the legs were treated, but not with a medication (p 996, 998), and on redirect that the vena cava ligation portion of the operation was purposed for that (p 998-99)

The medical examiner, Dr. Abdullah Fatteh, who performed the autopsy of deceased-victim testified at the trial (E2, VII pp 1062-111) and at the 3.850 hearing (E3, pp 167-190).

At the trial [page references to E2, VII] Fatteh was admitted as a qualified, experienced expert pathologist/medical examiner for Broward County (p 1062-65). He performed the autopsy on 12 March 1978, the day after the victim died (p 1065, 1078). He described the head/brain injuries (p 1066-67); "extensive bronchopneumonia in both lungs" (p 1067); and a duodenum ulcer (p 1067). He too described surgery in the abdominal area, and blood in that cavity which he "associated with laceration of the spleen" (p 1068). Fatteh's microscopic examination of tissues confirmed his gross autopsy findings (p 1068) as did his examination of the hospital records (p 1069). The 'ulcer' appeared to be chronic, about one to two months old, and a stress-related complication of the head-injury (p 1070-71). Fatteh's opinion was that the cause of death was "complications of head injury" (p 1068)

On cross examination Fatteh further testified that "[t]he direct cause of death was intra-abdominal hemorrhage due to laceration of the spleen" (p 1073), and that "laceration of the spleen was associated with actual inflammation of the substance

of the spleen, which would make it more liable to rupture and cause the bleeding" (id). Further, the "direct cause of the rupture was the inflammation of the substance of the spleen [and t]he inflammation of the spleen was associated with generalized inflammation of organs, such as lungs, and also poisoning of the blood stream due to inflammation or infection of the blood itself [which latter infection i]n all probability [] was related to the infection of the lungs" (p 1073-74). Respecting the indicated abdominal surgery, Fattah noted that several procedures were performed during same, including for ligation of the ulcer (p 1074). This surgery was performed 5 March, six days before the victim died (p 1075, 1078). One of the reasons apparent for performing that surgery was that there were prior episodes of internal bleeding (p 1077), and the main objective was to treat indicated complications from the head injury - duodenum ulcer and pulmonary embolism (p 1080). Because an initial indication for the operation was pulmonary embolism, a 'vena cava ligation' procedure was adopted to prevent further blockage in the victim's lungs (p 1081), the lungs being afflicted with "extensive bilateral bronchopneumonia, which is infection of both lungs with formation of abscesses in the lungs" (p 1088). This affliction was of two weeks duration (id). Fattah had not, at the time of autopsy, read all the medical records, but did so prior to his trial testimony (p 1078). He noted therein that an 'anticoagulant' had been administered 21 February (twelve days before surgery and eighteen days before death) to reduce blood clots, which medication is 'contraindicated' for the ulcer (p

1087). The victim's condition **worsened after that, and even** moreso after the surgery on 5 March (p 1084). Fatteh's examination of the 'spleen' disclosed 'fresh clots' around it, which "were caused probably within minutes before death" (p 1094), and "the rupture of the spleen caused the clots" (id). The "rupture of the spleen was probably related to the infection of the spleen" (id). As to the infection being the result of 'incisions', Fatteh testified as follows:

In my opinion, the infection [involved with the incision] was not related to the laceration of the spleen. The incision was caused several days before death [i.e. 5 March, death occurring 11 March] but the laceration and bleeding around the spleen occurred shortly before death [i.e. "probably within minutes before death" (p 1094)]

(p 1095). Fatteh's microscopic examinations confirmed his autopsy findings and testimony (p 1098)

On redirect examination Fatteh testified that the overall treatment of various maladies afflicting the victim **was** "appropriate" (p 1100-01). He also testified further as to the spleen malady

Q [STATE]: The laceration of the spleen, you testified was caused as a result of some inflammation of the spleen [which] inflammation was as a result of what?

A: That inflammation was a reflection of generalized infection of the blood throughout the body, which was associated with bilateral bronchopneumonia in the lungs. * * * That condition of poisoning of the blood, or infection of the blood, is called septicemia, and that is a fairly common complication of pneumonia. * * * The pneumonia usually results, in a patient such as this, from immobilization, which results in slowed circulation throughout the body. If a person is unconscious and immobilized, that person's defenses are reduced and they are more susceptible to contracting pneumonia. * * * The autopsy showed that there was a fracture of the skull, **and** laceration of the brain,

which would **be** consistent with unconsciousness, and the records are consistent with what I found.

(p 1101-02).

At the 3.850 hearing [page references to E3], over seven years after his trial testimony aforesaid (E2, VII p 1045; E3, p 1), Fatteh was questioned most specifically as to the vena cava ligation procedure circumstance (p 171-72). He recalled that his autopsy disclosed that no 'pulmonary emboli' existed then, such that the suspicion or diagnosis thereof upon which that procedure was predicated was apparently error (p 172, 180). Rather than pulmonary emboli at the time of autopsy he determined extensive pneumonia in the lungs (p 172). He also recalled that several other procedures were performed during that same surgery, other than vena cava ligation (p 172-73). Bleeding persisted for the next several days, and transfusions were given (p 173); and a Penrose Drain attached (p 174). Asked about the laceration of the spleen he allowed that it most likely took place during the surgery because "there were a lot of manipulations [which] involve moving the organs to **and** fro and this could result in injury to the spleen" (p 175). He notes that the "precipitating cause [of death] was internal hemorrhage from the laceration of the spleen" (id), and further testified:

Q [ATTORNEY ROSEN]: Was there negligence committed by the surgeons during the course of the operation?

A: [T]he diagnosis of pulmonary emboli was wrong and therefore the procedure of doing ligation of the inferior venal cava was in error. Therefore, that can be considered negligence.

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