### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPPEME COUR By\_\_\_\_\_\_Chief Debuty Clerk

THE FLORIDA BAR,

Appellee,

Supreme Court Case No. 77,773

v.

The Florida Bar File No. 89-52,722 (17C)

RAY SANDSTROM,

Appellant.

### ANSWER BRIEF OF THE FLORIDA BAR

B'AVID M. BARNOVITZ #335551 Tar Counsel The Florida Bar 5900 N. Andrews Ave., Ste. 835 Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 (305) 772-2245

JOHN T. BERRY #217395 Staff Counsel The Florida Bar 650 Apalachee Parkway Tallahassee, FL 32399-2300 (904) 561-5839

JOHN F. HARKNESS, JR. #123390 Executive Director The Florida Bar 650 Apalachee Parkway Tallahassee, FL 32399-2300 (904) 561-5600

##

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

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In a capital case in which **his** client was convicted of first degree murder, appellant, having undertaken representation of the defendant approximately a year prior to the trial, failed to conduct **any discovery** with the result that after extensive post trial proceedings it was necessary that the conviction be set aside due to appellant's ineffective representation.

The cumulative effect of appellant's lax and cavalier approach to the defense of a capital case, with the resultant client prejudice and waste of criminal justice resources, constitutes violations requiring imposition of the referee's recommended sanction.

### ARGUMENT

I. APPELLANT HAS FAILED IN ESTABLISHING THAT THE REFEREE'S FINDINGS ARE CLEARLY ERRONEOUS OR LACKING IN EVIDENTIARY SUPPORT.

In setting aside defendant's conviction for murder in the first degree, the trial judge imposed upon himself a rigid and demanding test enunciated in the order granting the defendant's motion to vacate. The order is attached hereto as Appendix I and was received in evidence **as** the bar's Exhibit 1.

The teat enunciated by the trial court is as follows:

In <u>Strickland v. Washington</u>, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984), the Supreme Court announced the applicable standard for determining if trial counsel was effective:

A convicted defendant's claim that counsel's assistance was so defective as to require reversal of a conviction or death sentence has two components. First, the defendant must show that performance was deficient. counsel's This requires showing that counsel made errors so serious that counsel was "counsel" functioning as the not guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment. Second, the defendant must show that the deficient performance prejudiced the **This** requires **showing** that defense. counsel's errors were so serious as to deprive the defendant of a fair trial, a trial whose result is reliable.

Id., 104 So.Ct. at 2064. Competent counsel's actions or omissions can be justified as the products of strategic considerations only if first preceded by reasonable investigation:

[S]trategic choices made after thorough investigation of law and facts relevant plausible options are virtually to unchallengeable; and strategic choices made after less than complete investigation are reasonable precisely to the extent that reasonable professional judgments support the limitations on investigation. In other words, counsel duty to make reasonable has a investigations or to make a reasonable decision makes particular that investigations unnecessary. In any ineffectiveness case. a particular decision **not** to investigate must be directly assessed for reasonableness in all the circumstances, applying a heavy measure of deference to counsel's judgments.

Arner v. State of Florida, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit of Florida, Case No. 79-1060 CF, Order Granting Motion to Vacate (April 8, 1988), p. 437-438.

Having enunciated the <u>Strickland</u> test, the trial judge proceeded to state, with particularity, the specifics which, in his opinion, mandated that the jury verdict be set aside; that exhibited appellant's ineffective representation. The State appealed. In affirming the trial court, the District Court of Appeal held:

> We believe that the trial court acted within its discretion in granting a new trial to appellee because of the alleged incompetency of his counsel. On the record before us we cannot say that the trial court applied the wrong legal standard or that its findings of fact were without evidentiary support. <u>State v. Amer</u>, 538 So.2d 528 (4th DCA 1989).

Assessing the very evidence adduced before the trial court, the referee, with detailed specifics and particularization, likewise found appellant's representation to have been woefully inadequate. The report of referee is attached as Appendix II. This Court is now presented with the cumulative presumption of correctness of findings of inadequate representation on appellant's part by the trial court and by

the referee. It is axiomatic that the party seeking review has the burden of showing that the referee's findings **are** clearly erroneous or lacking in evidentiary support. <u>The Florida Bar v. Wagner</u>, 212 So.2d 770, 772 (Fla. 1968). Unless this burden is met, a referee's findings will be **upheld** on review. <u>The Florida Bar v. Hirsch</u>, 359 So.2d 856 (Fla. 1978).

The most significant failing on appellant's part **as** found both by the trial court and the **referee** was **his** failure to develop the very critical medical aspect of **his** client's case. In that the referee adopted the bar's proposed report, it is necessary that bar **counsel** make extensive reference thereto.

Paragraph five (5) of the bar's complaint alleged that appellant, in representing Arner, failed to conduct **a** proper investigation as related to evidence available to establish that decedent's death was due to **a** cause other than Arner's actions. The referee, coming to the same conclusion as did the trial court, found:

F. Respondent, in representing Arner, failed to conduct a proper investigation as related to evidence available to establish that decedent's death was due to a cause other than **Arner's** actions.

i. The testimony of the medical experts **from the** transcript of the Rule **3.850** hearing (bar's Exhibit 3 in evidence) established beyond doubt that the proximate cause of decedent's death **was** medical malpractice. The jury was not presented with such evidence due to lack of adequate preparation on respondent's part.

ii. Dr. John Marracini, Deputy Chief Medical Examiner of Palm Beach County, reviewed decedent's medical **records** and the autopsy report. He testified that on March **5**, **1978**, surgery was performed **following** a diagnosis of pulmonary emboli (Rule **3.850** hearing, volume I, page **18**),\* but the surgery was based upon a misdiagnosis **by** the surgeon because decedent did

<sup>\*</sup> All page references in **this** paragraph F are to transcript of Rule **3.850** hearing (bar's Exhibit **3**, in evidence).

not have pulmonary emboli (18-19). During the surgery, the spleen was injured. The injury to the spleen was unrelated to the head injury for which Mrs. Arner was originally admitted to the hospital and which injury formed the basis for the charge against the defendant. In the words of Dr. Marracini, the spleen injury "was not the result of a physical assault or anything like that initially" (21). Following the injury to the spleen, decedent was given 25-30 units of blood Dr. Marracini testified that decedent (22-23). should have been re-explored **His** testimony concluded as follows:

Q: So what we have here is a pattern. We have first the misdiagnosis of the pulmonary emboli; is that correct?

A: Yes.

Q: We then **have** the surgical intervention which ruptures **or** lacerates the spleen; correct?

A: Yes.

Q: We then **have** the woman lying in the hospital bleeding to death based upon what the surgery did to her?

A: Yes, the bleeding was a significant attribute to death.

Q: Did the bleeding and the shock that followed the bleeding cause her death?

A: It was one of two mechanisms occurring on **or** abut that time; the other **being** pneumonia.

Q: But for the operation would Elinor Arner have lived?

A: Probably (24-25).

**Finally, Dr.** Marracini opined that the "failure to recognize the problem of internal bleeding was tantamount to malpractice" (36).

Mitchell Levy, Dr. ш. a board certified general surgeon testified. He, like Dr. Marracini, opined that the diagnosis of pulmonary emboli was in error (40). Dr. Levy stated that the surgeons should have first performed an arteriogram to determine whether there were clots in the pulmonary arteries which is done in almost any patient undergoing a vena cava ligation which Dr. Levy described as "a major undertaking and fraught with multiple is post operative complications" Decedent's doctors never (41).

performed such a test. In addition, Dr. Levy opined that it was inadvisable to perform the ligation without first performing two (2) types of lung scans, but that only one (1) scan was performed (41-42). Dr. Levy found that the spleen was lacerated because of the surgical intervention. There was no spontaneous eruption of the spleen. He characterized the odds of a spontaneous eruption as about "a million to one" (43). He stated that he was "astounded" that the decedent was not re-operated upon after the surgery (46). He opined:

This lady should have been immediately prepared for surgery, transfused as high **as** they can get **her**, taken **back** to the operating room, re-explored and taken care of whatever injury occurred during the initial procedure (47).

He stated that the surgeons let decedent bleed to death and were guilty of gross negligence (47, 50-52, 59). Dr. Levy explained that had the malpractice not occurred the decedent would have survived the blow to the head (48).

The original iv deputy medical examiner who testified for the state at the murder trial was **Dr.** Fatteh. He was the final medical expert to testify at the Rule **3.850** hearing. On the basis of his autopsy findings, **Dr**. Fatteh testified that the diagnosis of pulmonary emboli was not correct (172). He stated that the operation was not justified (172). Dr. Fatteh agreed with Drs. Marricini and Levy that the treatment of the decedent vis a vis the surgical intervention was gross negligence (179). Dr. Fatteh agreed that the spleen lacerated was a result of the surgery (174-175). Finally, Dr. Fatteh explained that he testified during the murder trial from a medicolegal standpoint (184) but that he was never asked to address what went wrong medically during the case (184).

Respondent's approach to v. the cause of death consisted of nothing more than a phone call between him and Dr. Davis at the Dade County Medical Examiner's Office. The call took place after Dr. Davis was asked to review medical Sandstrom's records from Mr. file. Mr. Sandstrom could not testify that the records were complete. He recalled that they were the records he had received from prior counsel's file. All he "related her knew was that they to hospitalization" (225). Based upon whatever those records were, Dr. Davis, according to agreed with respondent, the findings of (226). (1) Fatteh That one telephone respondent conversation between and Dr. Davis constituted respondent's investigation into the cause of death. There was not even a written report from Dr. Davis. There was no deposition or interview of Dr. Fatteh. There were no interviews or depositions of any of decedent's attending physicians. Even though he concluded that he could not use Dr. Davis as a respondent, nonetheless. listed Dr. witness, Davis as a defense witness ten (10) days prior to When asked to explain, respondent could trial. See Report of Referee, Appendix 11, not (227). pages 2' through 5. See also, Order Granting Motion to Vacate, Appendix I, pages 432 through 435.

While appellant, in the first eighteen (18) pages of his brief, attempts to suggest that other reasons were offered at the original trial regarding the surgical intervention, diagnosis, etc., he ignores the emphatic testimony offered at the Rule 3.850 hearing, as recited hereinabove, to the effect that decedent would not have died save for an erroneous diagnosis and negligent surgical procedure.

Appellant, in **a** further attempt to rationalize his failure to explore, in more than **a** cursory fashion, the medical aspects of his elient's case, cites <u>Hallman v. State</u>, **371** So.2d 482 (Fia. 1979) and <u>Rose v. State</u>, **591** So.2d **195** (4th DCA 1991). Additionally, appellant makes reference to **a** dissenting opinion in <u>State v. Arner</u>, **538** So.2d **528** (4th DCA 1989). It is respectfully submitted that respondent's reliance upon such "precedent" is misplaced. In <u>Hallman</u> and <u>Rose</u>, it was apparent that the injuries inflicted by the defendants in such cases were, in themselves, lethal. Upon an additional consideration not cited in appellant's brief, the court, in <u>Rose v. State</u>, 16 FLW D1250 (4th DCA 1991) clarified the law relating to independent, intervening causes of death in a criminal milieu. In <u>Rose</u>, the infant victim's death was a lethal injury to the **back** of the head. The court stated:

The evidence was unrefuted that death was caused by the resulting subdural hematoma. The physicians' alleged failure to diagnosis and treat this injury in no way contradicted the fact that, left untreated, it was a mortal wound.

The court emphasized that under the circumstances, it was not error for the exclusion of evidence relating to medical malpractice <u>"unless it</u> <u>could be shown that as a matter of law, the malpractice was the sole</u> <u>cause of death."</u> (emphasis supplied). In the case at bar, the evidence adduced at the Rule **3.850** hearing, as recited above, established that the misdiagnosis and resultant negligent surgical intervention were the sole causes of death. Dr. Marracini opined that but for the operation the victim would have lived (pages **24** - 25, Rule **3.850** transcript). Dr. Mitchell Levy opined that had the malpractice not occurred, the decedent would have survived the blow to the head (Rule **3.850** hearing, page **48**). With respect, the dissent in <u>State  $\nabla$ .</u> <u>Arner</u>, supra, failed to recognize the distinction.

At the end of his first point, appellant makes reference to information not forming a part of the record in this case. Specifically, appellant makes reference to Mr. Arner's plea. Firstly, the Court is mislead by omission. The referenced plea occurred prior to the final hearing in this matter. Secondly, it is respectfully submitted that the plea has no relevance. Finally, should the Court entertain such information and the proffered plea colloquy, then the bar respectfully requests an opportunity to reveal and lay bare to the Court the extremely compelling **reasons** underlying Mr. Arner's decision to "plead out."

In response to the findings of the trial court and of the referee that appellant failed timely to challenge by pre-trial motion to suppress and failed **timely to** challenge **by** objection at trial, testimony and photographs relating to **a** search of his client's vehicle (see report of referee, **pages 5 - 7**, item G) appellant suggests that "the suppression issue was not significant in the circumstances of the client Arner's case" (appellant's brief, page 24). While appellant certainly is entitled to such opinion and observation, the test is whether or not the findings of the referee are supported by competent evidence. In a detailed and careful analysis, both the trial court and the referee specified precisely how and why the failures attributed to appellant impacted the underlying criminal case. It is respectfully submitted that appellant's suggestion that the issue was not "significant" does not meet appellant's burden to demonstrate that the referee's findings are "clearly erroneous or lacking in evidentiary support."

Appellant attempts to debunk the **findings** of the trial court and of the referee that appellant's failure to ascertain the physical layout of the crime scene, especially **as** the scene related to the existence or nonexistence af certain fencing, constituted ineffective representation. As appellant rationalized his failures in other respects, he likewise rationalizes that "the 'fence' issue was not important in any event" (appellant's brief, page 29). Appellant also suggests that the witness, Hutton, produced at the Rule 3.850 hearing, did not give evidence to substantiate the referee's findings. The witness's testimony more than substantiates the identical findings arrived at by the referee and the trial court. A reading of the trial transcript inescapably leads to the conclusion that appellant's trial strategy was to attempt to lead the jury to believe that a third party had committed the crime. Attention was particularly focused on one Valerie Wade. The fence issue became relevant and a focal point in that the prosecution attempted to establish that Ms. Wade could not have vacated the crime scene within certain time parameters as fencing would have barred her way. Appellant makes the naked assertion that "the Referee is sorely mistaken to find

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